SENATE FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES OF MEETING FEBRUARY 11, 1977

The meeting was called to order at 8:30 a.m.

Senator Floyd R. Lamb was in the chair.

PRESENT:

Senator Floyd R. Lamb, Chairman

Senator James I. Gibson, Vice Chairman

Senator Eugene V. Echols Senator Norman Ty Hilbrecht Senator Thomas R. C. Wilson Senator C. Clifton Young

EXCUSED ABSENCE: Norman D. Glaser

OTHERS:

Ronald W. Sparks, Chief Deputy, Fiscal Analyst

Howard Barrett, Budget Director

Cy Ryan, UPI

Joseph Anderson, State Librarian Mrs. Rae Clemison, State Library

Ray Smith, Nevada Adv. Council on Libraries

Hope Roberts, Chairman, Nevada Adv. Council for Vocational-

Technical Education

Bob Hawkes, Executive Director

Merlin Anderson, Administrator, Comm. on Postsecondary Education Dr. Don Fowler, Archaeological Survey

Robert Elston, Archaeologist

Richard Brooks Mary Rusco

M. Myles, Hobbycist NAS

STATE LIBRARY: Mr. Anderson introduced his assistant librarian Mrs. Clemison who spoke on the Library Cooperation budget. This Division for Cooperative Services is established in NRS 378.085 and performs the technical functions of purchasing, cataloging, and processing of books and materials and also conducts the interlibrary loan services known as Information Nevada. The technical functions are performed for the Community Colleges, State Library, public libraries, schools, state institutions and approximately thirty state agencies, with special cards run for the two universities. This is a subdivision of the Nevada State Library.

Mrs. Clemison reviewed the Cooperative budget line by line explaining the function of the different funds. She particularly called attention to an adjustment in personnel whereby three positions had been combined in one for a net loss of two positions, one a full time employee and two half-time students. No one was laid off, there was a vacancy and it simply was not filled. This resulted in a total savings of \$10,086. She explained the out-of-state travel by saying it was sometimes necessary for her to go to areas contiguous to Nevada as they are interested in having some work done on their books.

Mr. Anderson presented the budget for the Library. This budget supports several programs which are administered by the Nevada State Library. Funding for this budget is derived from Federal Library Services and Construction Act Title I and Title III.

TITLE I - LOCAL LIBRARY FEDERAL GRANTS: Primary emphasis of the program is to award and distribute grant funds to participating local public libraries and other eligible organizations and agencies. Program activities include statewide planning for and evaluation of library services; dissemination of information concerning library services; and the work of advisory groups and panels.

STATE INSTITUTIONS LIBRARY SERVICES: Program objective is to develop and enhance library and information services appropriate to each state supported institution, based on internally accessible resources designed to support the educational and rehabilitative programs of the several institutions. Implementation of this objective is through grant-inaid awards and consultative activities.

SENATE FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES OF MEETING FEBRUARY 11, 1977 PAGE TWO

PHYSICALLY HANDICAPPED LIBRARY SERVICES: Program is to serve physically handicapped persons on a statewide basis, utilizing all formats of library and information materials suited to their special needs. Coordination of the activity with other state and local public and private agencies is maintained to insure access and delivery of services to this special clientele.

TITLE III: LIBRARY SERVICES CONSTRUCTION ACT: Interlibrary Cooperation: The program objective is to achieve maximum coordination of the resources of school, public, academic, and special libraries and information centers for improved supplementary services for special clientele served by each type of library or center.

Activities under this program include planning, training and taking other steps leading to development of cooperative library networks; and the establishment, expansion, and operation of local, regional, and interstate cooperative projects involving the several different types of libraries.

Mr. Anderson reviewed the budget in detail. He stated that the most popular item at the library was the microfilm collection of old newspapers. Because many courthouses had been burned down and papers lost in other ways, old newspapers provided an invaluable source of reference material. After the library had completed the microfilm program, the papers were given to the Historical Society who were anxious to have the old and rare papers. He estimated the value of the collections, rare documents, books etc. that were presently owned by the library to be in excess of \$3.5 million.

Mr. Smith spoke briefly of a 4 point program, the first a state wide system for the exchange of materials and information; another was the development and support of three regional resource centers which have been a policy of the advisory countil for some time; the third is the strengthening of local public libraries partly in relation to a derived plan and especially within specific fields. Finally some of it goes for continual planning and training for the development and coordination of library service. In recent years much of this development money has gone into bookmobiles which have proven to be very successful in reaching isolated or rather scattered portions of the state. Senator Lamb said he would like to see how much of the funds have been grant money and how much general funds. They agreed to provide this information.

Senator Hilbrecht asked for information that would reflect acquisitions to the library collection. Senator Lamb stated he thought this information could be included in the other. Mr. Anderson spoke further on the Library Cooperation budget, covering portions which Mrs. Clemison had not touched. Senator Lamb thanked them for appearing.

VOCATIONAL EDUCATION ADVISORY COUNCIL: Mrs. Hope Roberts, Chairman of the Council and Mr. Robert E. Hawkes were present on this budget.

Mrs. Roberts read a prepared statement, copy attached. She also submitted a revised justification document for the budget. This had been amended to conform within the recommended budget of the Governor. There were no new positions and she stated the Council would try to live within this budget. They would have to cut down on their meetings from six a year to quarterly meetings. The federal government mandates these meetings, by category.

In answer to questions if 22 members on the board would not be unwieldly, Mrs. Roberts stated that when the Council was originally formed there had been 21, but during the last legislative session it was cut back to 13 and this had imposed a great hardship on 13 people to carry out the mandates. She stated that they had never had any trouble meeting a quorum as these members were very dedicated people.

In answer to Senator Young's query on what had been accomplished, Mrs. Roberts explained that they enjoyed a very good relationship with the State Board of Education; they monitored their programs. The Council published an annual evaluation report and during the past year the evaluation had

SENATE FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES OF MEETING FEBRUARY 11, 1977 PAGE THREE

included an audit which was the tracing of federal funds.

Senator Young asked if the state was going a good job and Mrs. Roberts stated that they were doing an excellent job, the programs had been upgraded to meet the current needs of business and industry. She explained that the Council would be involved in the CETA program as part of their new responsibilities this year.

Senator Lamb thanked them for appearing.

COMMITTEE ON POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION: Mr. Merlin Anderson, Administrator, presented this budget. Chapter 725, 1975 Session of the Nevada Legislature, created the Nevada Commission on Postsecondary Institutional Authorization. The Commission, composed of seven gubernatorial appointees, is responsible for the supervision of privately owned institutions offering postsecondary vocational and professional instruction to the citizens of Nevada. This supervision is accomplished by:

- 1. Licensure regulation of all postsecondary schools subject to the Commission's jurisdiction.
- 2. Monitoring the ongoing operations of licensed schools to assure compliance with statutory and administrative standards.
- 3. Investigation and resolution of complaints against schools. Additionally through contract arrangements with the Veterans Administration, the Commission is responsible for approving instructional programs for veterans training in Nevada. The Commission has a full-time staff.

Mr. Anderson gave each senator a synopsis of the overriding activities in which the Commission has been involved this year. This Commission was organized as an outgrowth of a statute that was formerly with the State Department of Education. It was organized as a separate institution under the direct jurisdiction of the Governor and the members are appointed by the Governor. They are charged with the licensing of all private post-secondary schools and they have the additional responsibility of handling approval for federal training within the state which includes not only the private sector but the public sector as well.

In answer to Senator Lamb's question as to the nature of the 98 student complaints, he explained that these include inadequate instruction, requests for refunds, a course not being offered as originally intended or a change in time of the course. These are typical of a varied number of complaints received.

He cited one position, a senior clerk typist, that had been requested in the budget which was not supported by the Governor. He asked the Committee to consider this. He explained that part of their duties consisted of inspecting schools approved by the Veteran's Administration and submitting a report. Any follow-up to recheck had to be done by them. The Veteran's Administration had five people conducting compliance surveys and the Commission had to do a follow-up at their request pursuant to their contract with them. These reports and records in addition to the routine clerical work for conducting the Commission was becoming impossible to carry out, and he stated that they needed this position badly. In addition, a new bill A. B. 578 which was the Governor's bill, was being introduced and if that passed it would add inspections of the cosmetology schools and barbering schools to their responsibilities. There were no further questions and Senator Lamb thanked Mr. Anderson for appearing.

ARCHAEOLOGICAL SURVEY: The Nevada Archaeological Survey coordinates and conducts a cooperative program to survey, record, study and preserve or salvage objects, localities and information of historic, prehistoric and paleoenvironmental significance. Various federal laws require that studies of historic, prehistoric and paleoenvironmental sites threatened by construction or other land-modifying activities be undertaken prior to the inception of such projects. To meet these requirements the survey undertakes

SENATE FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES OF MEETING FEBRUARY 11, 1977 PAGE FOUR

study projects for state agencies as well as numerous contract studies for state, federal and local agencies and private corporations. The Survey also has the obligation to maintain records and artifact collections, provide certain consultant services to agencies and individuals and to conduct public education programs to make the citizens of the state aware of Nevada's cultural heritage.

The Archaeological Survey works with the University, state museums, and the Historical Society.

Dr. Fowler presented the Committee with a copy of a report which was a summary of what was done during the last fiscal year. He stated that they were proposing that the administration of the Survey be moved from Nevada State Museum to the UNS. He stated that a bill has been submitted to the bill drafters to effect this change. The Regents will act upon this on February 18th. It has been agreed that if the transfer is effected that the most appropriate placement for the administration of the Survey within the UNS will be at the UNLV Museum - from one museum to another. Discussion followed on this placement and the separation of funds for this function from UNS funds.

Dr. Fowler listed some of the projects they were working on and the results from some of their work. Robert Elston and Richard Brooks, who accompanied him, described in more detail the specific work they had been involved in. Mr. Elston explained that very often artifacts can be removed from the site. However if there is historical value evidenced, such as an old building foundation, discovery of an ancient Indian site, or something of this nature, they would recommend that this site not be disturbed and ask if the planned construction could not be diverted.

Senator Young asked about the work and costs at Fort Churchill. Dr. Fowler explained that there was a problem there as Fort Churchill is on the National Register of Historic Places. This involves the federal government, also federal funds. This brings in the National Park Service, the Council on Environmental Quality, and all of the National Register people who have to be satisfied that the work is going to be done according to federal standards. The federal money cannot be spent until they are satisfied. He explained that archaeology is very expensive; it requires a great deal of hand labor.

Mary Rusco reported on work done for the highway in the Lovelock area.

There were no further questions and the meeting adjourned at 10:20 a.m.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

MURIEL P. MOONEY, SECRETARY

Muriel P. Morney

APPROVED:



Governor



NYE BUILDING, CAPITOL COMPLEX CARSON CITY, NEVADA 69710 TELEPHONE (702) 885-4499 RICHARD CUTBIRTH
Vice Chairman

ROBERT E. HAWKS Executive Director

Members

GEANT T. ANDERSON
KEITH ASHWORTH
MAX BLACEHAM
JAMES B. CASE
MARSHALL DARNELL
J. CLARE DAVIS
J. LESLIE DERKOVITZ
RUBY DUNCAN
GEORGE GOVLICK
MICHAEL L. MELNER
MARVIN E. PICOLLO

February 11, 1977

T0:

Senate Committee on Finance

FROM:

Hope Roberts, Chairman

SUBJECT:

Budget Justification and Summary Supporting NRS 399 and

Amendments Thereto

NRS 399 is in process of amendment in response to Public Law 94-482 enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States of America in Congress assembled October 12, 1976, cited as the Education Amendments of 1976.

The proposed amendments to NRS 399 increases the number of council members from 13 to 22 by broadening categorical representation and thus the overall expertise within the council. The state board for vocational education is charged to ensure appropriate representation on the council of: both sexes, racial and ethnic minorities, and geographic regions, with a majority of members not being professional educators. The amendment adjusts and staggers council members' terms to 3 years with a limit of two terms, thus also conforming to recommendations by the Governor's Office of Planning Coordination.

The amendments also expand responsibilities of the council:

1. Shall advise the State Vocational Education Board in development of: 5 year state plan, annual program plans, accountability report and policy matters arising out of administration of programs.

- To provide annual evaluation and analysis of vocational programs, service, activities, and the distribution of federal funds in Nevada with followup recommendations for improvement.
- 3. To consult with the State Comprehensive Employment and Training Office with comments annually on programs. Also to identify and assess, after consultation with SCETO, the vocational education employment and training needs of Nevada.
- 4. To aid in the formation of and to provide technical assistance to local advisory councils throughout the State.

The Advisory Council will be funded from federal funds as per the "76 amend-ments" of PL 94-482.

When the current Council budget was submitted for approval it was based upon Congressional intent of \$100,000 minimum funding to Nevada. On October 12 when PL 94-482 was made law the minimum funding was reduced to \$75,000, with authorization currently pending.

The Council adheres to all State policies and procedures as outlined in the State Administrative Manual.

The Council has received excellent working relationship, cooperation and advice, in fiscal matters, with the Budget Division. They have devoted considerable time and effort, on many occasions, in aiding our efforts to fulfill our assigned State and Federal responsibilities within State fiscal guidelines as established by the Legislature.

HR:BH:mfs

REVISED JUSTIFICATION DOCUMENT

1977-78 1978-79 BIENNIUM BUDGET REQUEST

NEVADA ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR VOCATIONAL-TECHNICAL EDUCATION

112

INTRODUCTION

The Council is vitally and wholly concerned with career and vocational education delivery systems in the State. It seeks to ensure that the best possible opportunities are available for the people of Nevada along with the most efficient expenditure of dollars, thereby creating a balance of effectiveness and efficiency in the application of dollars allocated.

NRS 399 is in process of amendment in response to Public Law 94-482 enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States of America in Congress assembled October 12, 1976, cited as the Education Amendments of 1976.

The proposed amendments to NRS 399 increases the number of council members from 13 to 22 by broadening categorical representation and thus the overall expertise within the council. The state board for vocational education is charged to ensure appropriate representation on the council of: both sexes, racial and ethnic minorities, and geographic regions, with a majority of members not being professional educators. The amendment adjusts and staggers council members' terms to 3 years with a limit of two terms, thus also conforming to recommendations by the Governor's Office of Planning Coordination.

The amendments also expand responsibilities of the council:

- Shall advise the State Vocational Education Board in development of: 5 year state plan, annual program plans, accountability report and policy matters arising out of administration of programs.
- 2. To provide annual evaluation and analysis of vocational programs, service, activities, and the distribution of federal funds in Nevada with followup recommendations for improvement.
- 3. To consult with the State Comprehensive Employment and Training Office with comments annually on programs. Also to identify and assess, after consultation with SCETO, the vocational education employment and training needs of Nevada.
- 4. To aid in the formation of and to provide technical assistance to local advisory councils throughout the State.

The Council adheres to all State policies and procedures as outlined in the State Administrative Manual.

The Advisory Council will be funded from federal funds as per the "76 amendments" of PL 94-482.

When the current Council budget was submitted for approval it was based upon Congressional intent of \$100,000 minimum funding to Nevada. On October 12 when PL 94-482 was made law the minimum funding was reduced to \$75,000, with authorization currently pending.

The Advisory Council's staffing pattern contains the positions of a professionally trained Executive Director and an Administrative Secretary. Federal funds are awarded to carry out the administrative requirements and responsibilities.

The 1977-78 - 1978-79 Biennium Budget includes under the Ol category funds to provide for these positions which are supvervised by the Advisory Council, whose authorization comes from PL 94-482 and Title 34, Chapter 399 of NRS.

Job Description (Summary) Executive Director: 1. To conduct and supervise all operations of the Council Office as per approved State policy and budget.

2. To coordinate all preparations for: Council and Committee meetings; public hearings; council visitations; and council member attendance at conferences, workshops, etc.

3. To coordinate, and supervise: data collection, processing, and preparation of evaluation reports.

4. To develop and maintain liaison with appropriate staff of educational agencies, professional organizations, business and industry, and the general public regarding career and vocational technical education pertinent to Nevada.

5. To maintain active updating communications with Council Chairman, Committee Chairmen, and members regarding National, State and local developments in delivery systems for career, vocational and technical education which are relevant to implementation in Nevada.

Job Description (Summary) Administrative Secretary: 1. To be knowledgeable of all Council activities and functions and aids Director in coordination and fulfillment of same.

2. Performs clerical and secretarial duties as required as well as management of business office routine.

Processes all fiscal afairs of Council office: payroll/personnel, expense claims, budgets.

	•	1977-78	1978-79
1.	Executive Director	\$20,924	\$20,844
2.	Administrative Secretary	11,057	11,521

OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL 02-6000

<u>Objective</u>

To seek out first hand knowledge of national direction and leadership techniques, from significant and outstanding leaders, for emerging operationally effective programs of vocational and technical education, which may be utilized in Nevada's forthcoming competency based programs.

To procure pertinent and relevant information, for adaptation to Nevada's recognized unique needs and for the development of recommendations to the State Board of Vocational Education which will reflect current innovative programs and procedures being successfully implemented regionally and/or nationally.

To continually revitalize, inspire and rededicate our volunteer membership in the pursuit of Council goals, objectives and functions which will ultimately result in dynamically competent programs of Vocational Education throughout Nevada.

Process

Participate in the following meetings and conferences by Council members and staff:

 Regional State Advisory Council Conference (annual -- 2 days) 3 @ \$417

Total \$1250

2. One Joint State and National Advisory Council Meeting (annual - 3 days) 2 @ \$600

Total \$1200

3. American Vocational Association Conference (annual -- 4 days) 2 @ \$525

Total \$1050

AGENCY REQUEST:

1977-78

1978-79

\$3500

\$3500

IN-STATE TRAVEL 03-6000

<u>Objective</u>

To consult with and represent the interests of business and industry within the State for formulating State long and short range vocational, technical education programs.

To consult with and represent the interests of the various socio-economic groups within the State as to their special needs in vocational-technical education.

Advise State Board of Education in development of 5 year and annual State Plan for Vocational Education.

To formulate and provide recommendations for guidance services and leadership in formulating local level vocational-technical education programs to the State Board of Education. To review existing State Comprehensive Employment Training Office programs for studied comments.

To provide vehicle for and represent civic service and labor organizations and general public in expressing views concerning vocational, technical education programs at local and State levels for the eventual development of the State Plan.

Process

- Conduct a minimum of 6 Council meetings annually in selected localities throughout the State.
 7 members: 42 @ \$75
 Total \$3150
- 2. Conduct at least 6 public hearing meetings annually in selected localities throughout the State.
 7 members: 42 @ \$100 Total \$4200
- 3. Participate in preparation of Annual and 5 Year Plan Meetings.3 Reno, 2 Carson City, 2 Las Vegas, 1 Elko.8 meetings @ \$75Total \$600
- 4. Consult with local school district representatives. Attend and participate in local advisory council meetings and activities. Provide technical assistance.
 10 members, 2 meetings each: 20 @ \$25] Total \$500
- Participate in school visitations, for evaluations of curricula format and facilities relating to the effectiveness of vocational education programs.
 18 members, 2 visitations each: 36 @ \$25 Total \$900
- Participate in Nevada Vocational Association State Convention. Total \$450
- 7. Consult with State Comprehensive Employment Training Office. Total \$100

AGENCY REQUEST:

1977-78

1978-79

\$9900

\$10,890

OFFICE SUPPLIES 04-7010

Objective

To maintain minimum inventory of expendable supplies utilized in the development and processing of written materials required for the ongoing business of the Council.

Process

Order and expend supplies as required.

AGENCY REQUEST:

1977-78

1978-79

\$550

\$575

OPERATING SUPPLIES 04-7020

Objective

To maintain minimum inventory of expendable supplies utilized in the normal operation of the Council office.

Process

Order and expend supplies as required.

AGENCY REQUEST: 3977-78

1978-79

\$150

\$175

COMMUNICATIONS EXPENSE 04-7030

Objective

To maintain communication channels for informational input to the Council as well as to provide methods of dissemination of output from the Council. Such communication shall involve linkage with local, State and Federal personnel and their agencies.

Process

Utilize telephone, telegraph, and postal services available to the Council on a rental, per item or basic contract basis, as provided by State services.

AGENCY REQUEST: 1977-78

1978-79

\$2,200

\$2440

PRINTING/DUPLICATING -- OPERATIONAL AND REPORTS 04-7040

Objective |

Provide State, local and federal educational and governmental personnel and their agencies with printed documents which reflect Council investigations in matters pertaining to: 11 27

- 1. effectiveness of programs, services and activities carried out in long range and annual plans for vocational education in Nevada.
- development and current status of vocational education programs, services and activities carried out by educational agencies throughout the State.
- 3. establishment or status of exemplary projects or programs initiated within the State, region or Nation.
- 4. reproduce all pertinent statistical, informational and relevant materials for Council member study for the development of valid, reliable recommendations to the State Board of Vocational Education.

Process

Prepare and publish annual evaluation reports on effectiveness of State vocational education programs. \$1250

Prepare and publish brochures reflecting Advisory Council activities and membership.

Printing and duplicating required for operation of office and dissemination of materials to Council members. \$700

AGENCY REQUEST: 1977-78

1978-79

\$2500

\$2650

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 04-7060

Objective

- 1. To obtain services of qualified agencies and/or persons having specific expertise in designated areas for the procurement of data relative to:
 - (a) The auditing of Vocational Education program funds at the local and state level:
 - (b) The determination of specific accountability for: the effectiveness of long range and annual state plans for vocational programs, and the competency of vocational program graduates through accepted research, review and appraisal techniques.
 - (c) Identification, assessment and preparation of comments regarding the consistent, integrated and coordinated approach to Vocational Education by State Manpower development programs.
- 2. To obtain services for the continuation and expansion of previously 1/2 initiated studies.

Process

To contract, on a bid basis, with agencies and/or individuals to provide services necessary for efficient data gathering, processing and compiling of information required for the publication of mandated reports.

AGENCY REQUEST:

1977-78

1978-79

\$12,201

\$9,348

EQUIPMENT REPAIR 04-7090

Objective

Maintain electric typewriter in functional condition. Maintain electrical calculator in functional condition.

Process

Contract with IBM Corporation for service agreement.

AGENCY REQUEST:

1977-78

1978-79

\$50

\$50

OTHER BUILDING RENT - 04-7110

Objective

Maintain public office space within which the affairs of the Council may be coordinated and administered.

Process

Enter into lease agreement with State lessor for 848 sq. ft. office space. \$5.37/sq. ft./yr. paid to State Buildings and Grounds from Council funds for FY 77 - \$4554. Reduced to \$4.80 for FY 78 - \$40.70. Return to \$5.40 for FY 79 - \$4579.

AGENCY REQUEST:

1977-78

1978-79

\$4,070

\$4,579

ADVERTISING AND PUBLIC INFORMATION 04-7120

<u>Objective</u>

To expand informational coverage of State and local vocational, technical education endeavors to all regions within the State.

419

To provide youth and adults of Nevada with up-to-date and current information as to availability of vocational-technical education programs.

To aid in development of realistic attitudes toward Vocational/ Technical occupations and the <u>rewards</u> therein.

To encourage interest in the formation and operation of effective local advisory councils.

Process

Utilize news media services, including electronic and printed services agencies.

AGENCY REQUEST:

1977-78

1978-79

\$600

\$600

DUES AND REGISTRATIONS 04-7300

Objective |

To qualify Council members and staff for participation in conference and workshop activities as are outlined under Budget Categories 02-6000 and 03-6000.

Process

Provide payment of necessary dues and registrations as required.

Nevada Vocational Association Conference 10 members @ \$20

Total \$200

American Vocational Association Conference 2 members @ \$45

Total \$90

National Advisory Council on Vocational Education/ State Advisory Council on Vocational Education Joint Conference 2 members @ \$35

Total \$70

Western Regional Conference of State Advisory Councils 2 members @ 15

Total \$30

AGENCY REQUEST:

1977-78

1978-79

\$390

\$390

OFFICE FURNITURE - EQUIPMENT 05-8300

Objective 0

To prepare accurate financial and statistical reports for State and Federal agencies.

To provide appropriate and efficient equipment for staff.

Process

Purchase one calculator at a cost of \$100 (state surplus).

AGENCY REQUEST: 1977-78 1978-79

\$100 \$100

TRAINING 10-0000

<u>Objective</u>

To provide training opportunities for Council members (22) which will enable them to carry out their responsibilities and thereby benefit the State and its citizens.

To provide leadership and training opportunities to various local advisory committee members so that they may provide reliable, relevant and valid advice to their respective educational agency.

Process

To attend State and National in-service training institutes re: evaluating vocational-technical programs, visitations to model programs, and orientation to Council responsibilities.

6 new members - 2 meetings ea: 12 @ \$200 ea.

Total \$2400

AGENCY REQUEST: 1977-78 1978-79

\$2400 \$2640

Senate Fenance

Oddress Phone Name Organization 736-467. 1385 Elizabeth JOE LENDINI Clark Co. School Dist 648-85. BOMANUZH 1904 Bluff LINDA CARR 452-4281 2604 Evans Tanny Shaney Basic PAHie hammach 2406 aven. Bononazh high 800664 Bill RENHORDT 620 VINCENT ASHANOD Belly Comba 6200 CHSADA Bonanza High 878-53/ Durnadette Hwasta 87857. 4512 El PARQUE Clark High 1735N. Rancho Dr. 648-5432 Shawna Byers Western High Keus 8w-622 Tope Reports ldo. Co. for Vo/Ed CausaCily Bob Hawks Advisory Course For Voe Ed. 885-4499 Las Vegas Su Mc Canley Las Vegas High School 734-652: 643-84 Rancho High School Laz Veg es Mark Legen Eldoradó High Aunda Richmond 9594 Permanti 452-541 453-1957 Wichael Babaock Eldoralo High 230-A ShauYBROOK PATRICE LOGUE WESTERN HIGH SCHOOL 878-9616 3217 Arlene Way Allison Sumner Western High School 41-271 JERI Johnson (girl) Sunset High School કાકા **ડ**. Ne|[iઽૻૺૼ49 451-044 Sunset High School 5000 APAWana Pave Bradley 870-711: Sunset High School 823 M. Lamber 42 Clark 1253 aville Eldorado 325 Vista Valle, 452-262 Julie Bowen June Bongirno Skip Kelley 878-280, 表でが 325 Vista Valley Eldorado High 295 Phyllis UAde Godfelten 452-6181 613 0KZ * 28 Cafforelli Maryboth Short Rancho Ki 2901 marie Donnie Parnell loads digh school 649-390 Carson P.T.A. 4039 Hir Diens 883-4234 I formery fore Ch Nye Cu. School Dist 482-625 Box 113 Tonopah New Duff of Educ 629 J. Sparls 358-3206 Thule wedow Jim Costa St. Bd of Educ. New Dept of Educ. 1122